
 

 

January 16, 2017 
 

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, January 16, 2017, at 
7:30 p.m. at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 
17602. The meeting was called to order by Mr. Dave Buckwalter, Chairman and was followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. In addition to Mr. Buckwalter, supervisors present were: Mr. John 
Blowers, Mr. Ethan Demme, Mr. Corey Meyer and Mr. Glenn Eberly.  Also present was  
Mr. Ralph Hutchison, Township Manager. 
 
The following persons signed in as being present in the audience: 
 
Pete Skiadas, 2323 Lincoln Highway East, representing Skiadas-Keares 
Anthony Freudenthal, 973 East Main St, representing Triangle Car Wash 
Don Hess, 500 Landisville Road 
Steve Gribble, 127 North Ronks Road, representing Ronks Fire Company 
Lynn Commero, representing Lancaster Newspapers 
John Freudenthal, 14109 Ballantine Country Club Drive, Charlotte, NC, representing Triangle  
        Car Wash 
John Espenshade, 51 South Duke Street, Lancaster, representing Stevens & Lee/Griffen 
Tom Bowen, 51 South Duke Street, Lancaster, representing Stevens & Lee/Griffen 
Peter Scudner, 2117 Waterford Drive, Lancaster, PA 
 
Minutes of the January 3, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the minutes of 
the January 3, 2017 regular meeting as prepared.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Blowers to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve the 
minutes as presented.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and the motion was passed by a vote of 
four in favor and one abstaining. (Mr. Eberly was absent from the January 3, 2017 meeting.) 
 
Bills: 
 
Chairman Buckwalter presented the bills to be paid from various funds for the total amount of 
$429,498.56.  He discussed some of the larger items including a payment in the amount of 
$155,252.56 to McMahon Associates for Route 30 Streetscape engineering, a payment in the 
amount of $10,781.08 to Rapid Pump & Meter Service Co. for Southridge Pumping Station pump 
replacement, a payment in the amount of $4,489.20 to Stevens & Lee/Griffen for Route 30 
Streetscape consulting services, and a payment in the amount of $54,848.13 to M&T Bank for 
annual street sweeper installment payment. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Meyer and seconded by Mr. Demme to approve the payment of the 
bills as listed in the amount of $429,498.56.  The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
 



 

 

Old Business 
 

a. Request for Financial Security Reduction – LMS Parking Lot: 2160 Lincoln Highway 
East 

 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Chairman Buckwalter stated that the Township engineer is recommending no reduction in 
financial security because the required improvements shown on the plans have not been 
completed. 
  
Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the financial security reduction of $0.00 for LMS Parking 
Lot at 2160 Lincoln Highway East leaving a remaining balance of $42,977.00 as recommended 
by the Township engineer.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 

b. Request for Financial Security Reduction – McNeil: 1838 Colonial Village 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Chairman Buckwalter stated that the Township engineer is recommending a reduction in the 
amount of $435,207.50 leaving a remaining balance of $121,280.58.   
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the financial security reduction of $435,207.50 for McNeil 
at 1838 Colonial Village leaving a remaining balance of $121,280.58 as recommended by the 
Township engineer.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 

c. Request for Time Extension to Record Conditionally Approved Plan – Triangle Car 
Wash: 5 Strasburg Pike 

 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. John Freudenthal 
was present. 
 
Mr. Freudenthal stated that they are requesting a 60-day time extension in order for the Engineer 
to finalize the plan.  He state that they have received preliminary approval from PADOT to 
modify the location of the guardrail along Lincoln Highway East to accommodate the 6’ 
sidewalk.  
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the request for time extension for 60 days to record the 
conditionally approved plan for Triangle Car Wash at 5 Strasburg Pike.  Mr. Demme seconded 
the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

d. Request for Financial Security Reduction – 1602 Retail: 1602 Lincoln Highway East 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 



 

 

 
Chairman Buckwalter stated that the Township engineer is recommending a reduction in the 
amount of $266,409.00 leaving a remaining balance of $97,939.00.  Mr. Blowers expressed 
concern about the slope matting not being in place and the potential of soil erosion if there is a 
significant storm. 
 
Mr. Blowers made a motion to approve the request for financial security reduction in the amount 
of $266,409.00 leaving a remaining balance of $97,939.00 as recommended by the Township 
engineer’s letter dated January 6, 2017.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 

e. Time Extension for Plan Review and Action – Smoketown Airport: 311 Airport Drive 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Mr. Hutchison explained that the Board has not seen this plan yet.  He stated that the applicant 
has submitted an application which has been reviewed by the Township engineer and they are 
working on addressing the review comments.  He stated that the time extension is to extend the 
time the Township has to act on the plan.  He stated this is the second time extension request for 
this applicant. 
 
Mr. Blowers made a motion to approve the time extension for plan review and action until  
April 1, 2017 for Smoketown Airport at 311 Airport Drive.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion 
and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

f. Fee in Lieu of Parkland Proposal – Hess: 832 Willow Road 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. Don Hess was 
present.  
 
Mr. Hess, the owner of the property located at 832 Willow Road, stated that he is subdividing his 
lot into two lots and is asking for a negotiated fee for parkland.  Mr. Hutchison stated that the 
proposed fee is accurate but suggested to the Board that a credit be considered for the easement 
on the plan to allow for a future trail along the width of the rear of the property as a fee in lieu of 
parkland.   
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to accept the easement in lieu of the proposed fee for parkland.  Mr. 
Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
New Business 
 

a. Township Planning Commission – 2016 Annual Report 
 
Chairman Buckwalter stated that the Board has received the 2016 Annual Report from the 
Township Planning Commission and expressed the Boards gratitude for the service of the 
Planning Commission. 



 

 

 
Other Business: 
 

a. Appointments to Emergency Services Committee – Terms Ending 12/31/18: 
1. Witmer Fire Company Alternate Representative – Mr. Chris Kauffman 
2. Township Citizen Representative – Mr. Clair Graham 

 
Chairman Buckwalter stated that Chris Kauffman has expressed his interest and willingness to 
serve as Witmer Fire Company Alternate Representative and Clair Graham has expressed his 
interest and willingness to serve as Township Citizen Representative to the Emergency Services 
Committee.  Mr. Blowers noted that Mr. Jim Smith has resigned as Township Citizen.  
Mr. Hutchison stated that there is now a vacancy for the position and the replacement would fill 
the remainder of the unexpired term until December 31, 2017. 
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve Chris Kauffman and Clair Graham as representatives to 
the Emergency Services Committee.  Mr. Blowers seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 

b. Authorize Execution of PADOT Reimbursement/Contribution Agreements re: Route 30 
Resurfacing 

 
Mr. Hutchison explained that both agreements relate to PADOT’s planned project to resurface 
Route 30/Lincoln Highway East from the Route 30 overpass on the west end to the Route 896 
intersection on the east end.  He stated that the Contribution Agreement is for the repainting of 
the lines according to the Route 30 Streetscape Plan and includes the changes for the crosswalks 
being enhanced, adding ADA pedestrian push buttons at intersections, and the “quick curbing” 
product at Millstream and Bowman Roads for left turn restrictions.  He also noted that it includes 
the cost of moving the signal heads so that they are in the center of the lanes.  He stated that 
altogether they are proposing an estimated contribution of $248,000 from the Township.  Mr. 
Buckwalter asked if there is any chance the proposed contribution could increase or decrease.  
Mr. Hutchison stated that the proposed contribution is based on engineering estimates but could 
increase or decrease based upon PADOT’s bidding of the project. 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that the Reimbursement Agreement is for the upgrading of the pedestrian 
crossings to meet ADA requirements.  He stated that any crossings that cross state highways are 
paid by PADOT but crossings that cross Township roads are to be paid by the Township.  He 
stated that PADOT estimated cost is $95,400.00. He noted that with the Contribution Agreement 
the Township has 30 days once the project is completed to submit payment but with the 
Reimbursement Agreement the Township can pay in twelve monthly installments. 
 
Mr. Blowers made a motion to authorize the execution of PADOT Reimbursement and 
Contribution Agreements in reference to the Route 30 Resurfacing Project engineering estimates 
for $248,000 for the Contribution Agreement and $95,400.00 for the Reimbursement Agreement.  
Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 



 

 

c. Authorization to Oppose Application before Zoning Hearing Board re: LIDL: Lincoln 
Highway East 

 
Mr. Hutchison stated that the project is located at 2331 Lincoln Highway East.  He stated that the 
applicant is proposing to demolish the existing buildings and construct a grocery/retail store.  He 
stated they have applied to the Zoning Hearing Board for a variance to the maximum parking 
space size.  He stated that there are additional zoning issues including the placement of the 
proposed building would encroach into the required side yard setback on the east side of the 
property and the total impervious area would be greater than what is permitted by the ordinance.  
The Board discussed the size of the parking spaces and the effects on the impervious surface.   
Mr. Pete Skiadas is an owner of the property to the rear of the proposed project.  He stated that 
he was asked to provide acreage to the project to provide parking and open/green space.  He 
stated that he thinks they are requesting the bigger spaces so that people have room for their 
shopping carts but he would prefer the smaller spaces which would allow more parking in the 
complex.  He stated that he felt it would be an asset to the community. 
 
Mr. Blowers made a motion to approve the authorize staff and the Township Solicitor to oppose 
the application of LIDL at 2331 Lincoln Highway East before the Zoning Hearing Board 
regarding parking spaces, setback and impervious area.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it 
was passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 

d. Resolution to Authorize Application for RACP Funding 
 

Mr. Hutchison stated that the consultants from Stevens & Lee/Griffen found that a new round of 
funding under the Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program (RACP) opened with an 
application deadline of February 3, 2017.  He stated that an application could be submitted for 
one of the recommended projects for the Route 30 Streetscape Plan.  He stated that he  would 
recommend that the Township pursue this funding source for the planned trail, stormwater 
demonstration project and bike lane that would go through Rockvale Square to Route 896.  He 
stated that one of the requirements is that the project have a total cost of at least $1 million and 
that the Township provide a match of $500,000. 
 
Mr. Tom Bowen from Stevens & Lee/Griffen stated that the proposed trail and stormwater 
management demonstration project would be a good match for the program.  He stated another 
requirement is that the project would have to begin by the end of 2018 to qualify.  He stated there 
may be another round of funding available later in the year and that the program is very 
competitive.  Mr. Hutchison informed the Board that contact had been made with the property 
owner who has also been actively involved in the Streetscape Planning process. 
 
Mr. Blowers made a motion to adopt the resolution to authorize the application for the  
February 3, 2017 RACP funding for the trail, the stormwater demonstration project and the bike 
lane at Rockvale Square.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice 
vote. 

Resolution #2017-05 
 

 



 

 

e. Resolution to Authorize Initiation of Process to Create a Business Improvement District 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that another recommendation of the Route 30 Streetscape Plan is to create a 
Business Improvement District for the Route 30 corridor.  He stated that there was a meeting 
held January 6, 2017 with the property owners along the corridor.  He stated that about 25 people 
attended representing 18 properties.  He stated that at the meeting they reviewed the Route 30 
Streetscape Plan, explained the concept of the Business Improvement District, how it would be 
created, what would be done and how it would be funded.  He stated that the next step if the 
Board would like to move forward would be to create a plan which would be sent out to the 
property owners and lease holders for review, hold a public meeting 30 days after the plan is 
provided to the property owners and have a dialogue with the Board about the plan.  He stated 
after that meeting any changes would be made to the final plan which would then be distributed 
to the property owners and a public hearing would be held.  He stated that the property owners 
would have to submit their objections in writing and if 40% of them indicate disapproval the 
Board could not move forward to create the Business Improvement District. 
 
Mr. Meyer asked if only the property owners can disapprove.  Mr. Bowen stated that is correct. 
He stated that each property owner gets one vote per tax parcel.  He stated that tenants have no 
vote but are required to be notified.  Mr. Hutchison stated that he hopes with the Boards approval 
to have the plan prepared and distributed by the end of the month. 
 
Mr. Demme, who attended the January 6, 2017 meeting, stated that they had a lot of participation 
and a lot of questions from the property owners including how the Business Improvement 
District would affect property owners and what is it going to do.  He suggested have a draft plan 
and a workshop to get property owners feedback.   
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to adopt the resolution to authorize Initiation of Process to Create a 
Business Improvement District.  Mr. Blowers seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution #2017-06 
 

f. Resolution to Authorize the Creation of an Industrial & Commercial Development 
Authority 

 
Mr. Hutchison stated that another tool identified by the Township consultants Stevens & 
Lee/Griffen is the creation of an Industrial & Commercial Development Authority to help pursue 
the implementation of the Route 30 Streetscape Plan.  He stated that this would allow the 
Township to pursue various grant programs and other programs such as Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) which is not available without the establishment of an Authority.  He stated once 
created the Authority would help to facilitate the Route 30 Streetscape projects. 
 
Mr. Bowen stated that this Authority would be similar to the one for the County.  He stated that 
the creation would provide opportunities for other programs and allow private businesses to 
apply for state grants through the Authority.  Mr. Hutchison explained that the attached Articles 
of Incorporation has the Board listed as the initial members of the Authority (with no additional 
compensation) and the terms of office initially need to be staggered but the traditional term is a  



 

 

5 year term.  Mr. Bowen stated that the first step is the intention to create the Industrial & 
Commercial Development Authority which then needs published in the newspaper, then names 
should be recommended, then the Articles of Incorporation are filed with the Secretary of the 
Commonwealth and then the Authority would be created.  Mr. Hutchison stated that all these 
steps could be completed before the next Board meeting on February 13, 2017. 
 
Mr. Pete Skiadas expressed concern about the whole Board of Supervisors serving as all the 
Authority members.  Mr. Buckwalter asked if it was possible to expand the number of members 
on the authority.  Mr. Bowen stated that it is allowed as long as no compensation is paid. He 
stated that if the Board finds people who are interested in serving on the Board a member can 
resign and they can replace them. 
 
Mr. Blowers made a motion to adopt the resolution to authorize the creation of an Industrial & 
Commercial Development Authority with terms of office appointed as noted on the attachment 
with the initial members of David Buckwalter-5 year, John Blowers-4 year, Glenn Eberly-3 year, 
Corey Meyer-2 year and Ethan Demme-1 year. Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was 
passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution #2017-07 
 

g. Consultant Service Agreement Addendum – Stevens & Lee/Griffen 
 
Mr. Hutchison explained in order to submit the application for the RACP he is going to need 
help from the consultants so he needs the Board to authorize the additional phases of work. 
 
Mr. Blowers made a motion to adopt the Consultant Service Agreement Addendum for RACP 
applications for Stevens & Lee/Griffen.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Peter Scudner of 2117 Waterford Drive spoke to the Board.  He expressed issues with the 
December 5, 2016 meeting minutes stating that he felt they didn’t reflect the conversation held. 
He spoke about his issues regarding the Land Development Plan for the Fairfield Inn property at 
2270 Lincoln Highway East including the stormwater plan’s limit of disturbance line that was 
excavated beyond that line leaving exposed 20 feet of soil which is settling and could erode.  He 
expressed concern that the contractor violated the approved plan and would like noted in the 
minutes that the Township engineer should pay attention to this area.  He would like to see a 
compaction report from the contractor and expressed his interest in having an onsite visit with 
the Township engineer, property owner and staff.  He also expressed concern about the blacktop 
saw cut line that has not been repaired and is crumbling.  Mr. Blowers stated that all issues that 
need to be addressed according to the approved plan be discussed with the Township engineer 
and property owner.  Mr. Buckwalter addressed the Mr. Scudner’s concern regarding the minutes 
by stating that they cannot be verbatim but are a summary of the discussion.  Mr. Hutchison 
stated that he suggested an onsite meeting with Mr. Scudner to allow him to point out the issues 
he feels need to be addressed. 
 



 

 

Mr. Scudner also asked about the Business Improvement District and what properties are 
included in the district. 
 
Adjournment: 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Eberly and seconded by Mr. Blowers to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, February 13, 2017 beginning at 7:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Ralph Hutchison 


















































